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. BEFORE THE HON’BLE SERVICE T-RIBUNAL, i
" KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA, PESHAWAR /
C1v1l Mlscellaneous Application in Execution Petmon No. 143/2024
In
Service Appeal No. 939/201 5
Muhammad Sohail.........coviiiiiiiii erereieana. Petitioner
‘ ' | VS : o
Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa throhgh Chief Secretary & Others.......... Respohdents
APPLICATION FOR DETACHEMENT OF SALARY IN R/Q RESPONDENT NO. 01
: ATTACHED VIDE ORDER SHEET DATED 06.06.2024
Khyber Pakhtukhwa
R tfu]]y Sheweth Service Tribunal
espec ,
Diary N".M
The respondent mo;t humbly submitted as under:- Bateal’ ,4'7/- £y

1. That the above titled case is pending fof adjudication before this Tribunal and was fixed
for hearing on 06.06.2024

2. That the Hon’ble Tribunal vide Order Sheet dated 26.04.2024 issued direction for
submission of certain-documents.

3. That in pursuance of the orders of the Hon’ble Tribunal, the answering respondent
submitted the requisite documents, thus complied with the direction in letter and spirit.

4. That there is no legal bar while detaching salary of the relevant respondent i.e. Chief
Secretary, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

5. That the order of the attachment of the salary may kindly be reviewed and order may
graciously be passed for its release, please.

BZ{;
(CHIEF ETAR >4
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
(Respondent No.01)

~ Through |
(Kaleemullah Khan) N
Special Secretary Establishment "
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A
AN .
-/ letter in question.

ination:-

EPR

xXam

s ..

A the witfiesses and Cross e
Mr. Lifgat Ali Khan, Deputy Director, Environmental Protection Agency (EFA)
sure-VI) highlighting that:-

"4 on oath the statement on 10™ Qctober, 2014 (Anne

o OM Aoyt
lzied 197 August

No.EPANOC/BTS/646 daiec
al for 780 BTS sites for Peakistan MO

Letter in question bearing

1.
communicating, EPA’s approv
Communication Limited (Mobilink) is fake and Environmental Proieetion 50008V
(EPA):does not OWRS fhis letter ot ils contents. '
ii. He also refesred to the detailed report of Director General, Environmental
onment Department vide Leuey

Protection Agency (EPA) submitied {0 Envir
NO.EEA/NO:’NOC/BTS/295 dated 71 October, 2013, The repoit €
he letter, (fake) to have been issugd bY EPA.

learly and

unequivocatly disowned t

Dr. Amjad All Khan, Ex Deputy Director, Environmen
. TN ; O Coe .
his staiement on 10" October, 2014 that he was parf o e prefiniinary

rement (Annexm'e’.-\,/ 1.

tal Protection

L
(EPA) recorded in

enquiry and he own his sta
recorded his siatement o

Secretary Environment
han), eputy

Muhammad Sohail Kl

-

12, My, Nacem Khan, PS ©

&  October, 7014, He confirmed that he (Mr.
¥ pdustries Departiment nad delivered photo:copy of the fake letter 1O him by hand.
This letter did_have original siamp £

Muhammad Sohail Khan was known {0 b
Secretary Office and had been marked to Secretary
letter in fresh dak! Afier some fime (5-6 minites) the ac

\gtreceived by Peon Rook so he ret

stated to him 10 return the letter. AS it was notr
siirn he had made twolthree pholo copies of

Environment. He (Naeem [Chan)

cused (Mr. Muhammad Sohat
urred the tewer 10

M, Muhammad:Dphal! iChan. But ‘D%fOE"’HIE‘L
193 L . _E‘;i kil h‘."!"‘f X . X K . X :
samwhite M 1\fh1hannmd:p.oniml han came {0 im and told that it was nota ’

jetter. In the mea

not disclose 110 anvoene.

reliable letter andsshould ¢
) 13, He was Cross examined bY ;'thi accused (t\/Iuhz‘-.m_mad Sohail Khan) that o which :
i date he came to him for delivery of letict, 0. which he replied that it was 267 Septembit, 2015
{hat he (the accused) came to his office. ‘He was further questioned DY the accused hat whether '
% he had brought this letier and was it marked to Secretary Environment o which he rephied i
L yes it was marked 10 Secretary Environmqqti_,}le was questioned bY ihe accused that whei! the
fake fener placed before the enquiry commitiee for probe is the same letier? He replied yes s ,
L copy of ihat leter. He was also questi(,niécj;;i'n,f the accused that for how long did he hnow him :
b X (the accused) to which he replied he.knew him since he was posied as Secreiry RTA
5 {"‘ N (Anncxure-VIHj. aa ,
E 14. My, Zafar Ullah, | unio'x'j“'@'lvei?k, Issue Branch of Chief Secretary vecoided in Nis ‘
sder NO.10369 op )

on 10" October, 2014 that he had diararized (by mistake) the fetier v
2013 with positive intention and not with the negatlV
, PSO to Chief Secretary, PS to Chief Secretary

staiement
e one. NO rernarks weie
written by the Chief Secretary or by fim on the

ccused that whether he had deliversd s laifer 1O
woht thig leiter o him and

0,

was cross examined DY the a
“Noo. He forgot that who brov

v Muhammad Sohail Khan (Annenures

h

13 He
( 1) Lo which he replied,

Lol know about
-k

2 GiG )
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Fecorded i pig Staiement gp 3™ October, 2014 (p
af mmad Sohajl Khan,
TN
ROk Company.

Deputy Secretary j
L A person by the n

e .. . .
SERCeT did visi( i office requesy,
73 vk “@-zl;y, . .
AR Conany. He wag already iy
& ) )
BIS iowers 0

at he solemn]y Staies on gy
fake teqcr for BTY Towers o

ducing himself 1o be a DG
Branting approval on (he subject jogye,
1y imp,erso.runm's WEIC approachip

ad isstied
ame of M, Sohaij) intro
g for hefpl in

aled as mg,
Nsuspicion

{0 the
he inquireg through his PS
ielary and a DMG officer ;

g him for Approvaf of
fCgarding My Sohail 16 he Additinngy|
hieer in Industrieg Dcpaument, The reply wag jn neg
£55i0ld him (hay there wag 4 PCS offices and @ Defyyy
same name, With 100,

3 Secrctzrry
able 1o confirp
as Someone

SAUve ang (he PS
deparimen by the
O Was vigired his
Iso rying 1p nresent ag ap
approval. Wi, M. N;
Sohail or ney but he (v

SUTELY, he woy)d Aot be
3 ollice Was Mr. Sohail (the

¢ accused officer)
IMposture ang clain'w'ng o be DMvG officef Emd'pushing
i PSto Sccreim'y Enviromncn[ he did oy discuss if he kne
{4 Y Bashiy Khan) 1ald him that ope

17. He

¢ Mr. Sohail hag ap;
as Cross ey
> Departmen, that whethe a
" PEIson with the 4

told his g, P
Peparimen
Lnfamilia

n Indusirieg I
¥ that the pers
else wag 4
him for this
WM
doached hip
amined by !\'!'r:.}'!\‘aecm Khan, pg
PEIsOn with the name'of M. Sohajl met hj
ame of My Sohail hag met
Alo gey nformation
To this

<}

1CC
AMmmag

to Secrcmry Environmcm
N0 which he replied veg g
Faucstioned i Whether he had
o e S Teply aboyg vy Sohail from dusirieg
Query he replieg that his Yas available iy p

‘ about My,

M B had i 80U informatjop Sohail from

also Gucstioned by the accused that dijq he sec any resemp|

one who deljvereg the fake letier ] i
e was ihay person, 1S further questioned
’@icen the pros ane

Gzeplied that Provincial Goy
Agency s cq

He wag
accused) and (he

1 h ay with 1009, Sure
by the enquiry Committee (fa, what w
€ Issuance of NOC fo,

©S 780 for gove
ernment dig not cha;

‘

ty
ould have

nment, 1o which he
£¢ any feeg gp for ag Enviromnmm! Protection
neerned, ;’*Iowcver,_ii vauses nojse pollution, aj; CMission gy creates Jega)
Complicationg (A:me,\:ure-X). .
18, Mr. Muhanm,
m

ad Iqha) Ky,

qUIrY comp;
ammad Sohaj Khan |
NO\"cn'rhcr: 2003 My N
Muhammaq Sohail K},

RTA. Later on, the

£
rf 48 Cross e

: “Amined by the accused -thay
lake Jener © him (M, Nagem Khan) 1o which he replicd th
1- . .
accused) dig admit (g he ha
Dl n , e
' &ihut accused hye

ember iy (e preii
that My, Muh
on 22

attal, Deputy
tee) recordeq
ad denied apoy the fa
acem Khap Stated" ()
an himself and h
accused hag

minary cp

Secrcu:ry, Env
n his Staieme)
ke leiter on |
at the fake letter b
since the time he
very of letier to N

ronmes; i_.)c;‘lz,zrimcm (a
Lon |3 chhcr, 201
ot Novcnﬂ)cr, 2013, By
ad been delivere by M.,
Was posled ag Sccreizlry
acem Khap

e knew him
admitteq the del;
He w

g 0T SRS TIET

on which dage he hag deliviered the
at on 22" N
i detivered It M.

Ovember, 2013 he (the
Nacem Khan. j4c was further QUEstiongd by
did he have any writien evidence about ji (o which
§accus‘ed) had verbally admigeq before (he fact f;
3 by accused

Personally
! (.‘\arncxm'cv\’l).

* t

he repiiec that |
ke letier w
Envire;

nding ¢nquiry
o My,

1 {ihe

as delivered
Khan, PS.
N

I)cpe:z'[mcznl

that the fa

Nacem to Sccremry
1]

Y

P

meny
19 Mr. Miy » Section Ofﬁcer, .'I:‘nvironmcnf Dcpar[mcm recorded in hje
Statement g 3 Ociober, 2014 thay 45 Stated in (he' fact i‘}nding enquiry report, My, Muhammaq
Soha[li Deputy Secrctary, Dcparlmem had ‘delivered the fake documen
My, Naeem, pg to Secreta ent, is frye.

/approvaj o
FLEPRA R
FHe was crossle

Xamined by ghe accused- that o, which
of fake documeny o My, Nacem, PS to Sccretaﬁy Ehvironmem o
C N ."." t

Zali Khan

Industrieg
Y Environm

dcfi\fei“;'

date he

admitted the
which he

replied ihay
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Fake and bogus letter }DCHIII]Q No: EPANOC/BTS/646 dated joih
aaining approval/NOC of the Environme

ronmental Protection Agency EPA.

August, 2013
ent Protection Agency had not hcen Issued by
Hn\ was reporied by Direcior Ge 118,
mu,um Agency (BEPAY 1o E n\‘nommm L)LI artment through a note No: EPA/

n ()c'on'r L, 2013 and \,S[abh%hb( L]'lb case through a
g

Lnvironmental
NOC/BTS/285

rgument mentioning the procedure
qvof\ cd i isstiance of /\ppmval/\'OC ic Take letter did not have logo of the Environmental

Protection /‘\”cm\ (EPA) and the smnatm ol the Director (n.n.(l‘ on 1t and was bhogus.
Besides, this NOC in such cases are issuc L bv Assistant Direcior (l\dmu,a]) and not Director
General, Environmental Protection \r'cnr.\ (EPA). NOC is issucd uf
report and that 0o in respeet of each site - Ilm Was net possidle that one official/ofMicer conld
carry ow insps ‘ctlon/nmm!mmf' of 780 .BTS sites ot one time .

1

ter receipt of momloun”

'1\.1 on :.]h./ Saime U(l'\"' 'C ]9“!

Avgust, 2013 when MIS Pakistan Mobile' Communication Limiied wasaddressed through the
fa!\u ]c’.{l(:!‘.

25. Lhe enquiry commiitee d \.'.try o find out a5 what would
i nhu.non (\) of lake approval/NOQC 'md asked Director Gene wal, I
Ageney (EPA)Y for that purpose during ccourse of the enquiry. e informed ihay imvimia'
Government does not charge any fees as far as Environmenial Proteciion /\g‘n(,y (LPAY s
concerned. Ilo\\wb; implications “"F’ ermns of noise pollution. wir emission and lc,g(I '

wve been the
vironniental Protection

RRTLE T

complications wauld ¢ lc,ﬁmtely have axou% 1f the fake approval/NOC could have found place for

implementation. =

Findings:- ;
20. ‘ Charge against the accused is not provez. "%

Conclusion on Clmrge No.2:- -4'%5:-:

27, The cnqunv commiilee wa$ €oncerned that a letier which was neither addiessed

nor "ndomco to Chief Secretary [KChyber: Pa',\htunl\h\\ had heen

een registered under Diary No:

10369 on 257 Septe ember, 2013 by M. /dimuliah Junior Clerk, Cine |‘ Su,:ol«v'v ofitce. He states

that he ICLL]VGC] It with “posmvc nte nt.on' 'ma not with negative one”. Now the. qvcsllon arses

lmt what could h"zw been that “positivl Intwuon 7 Thisis a lapse on'part of him.
s ST B :
B 28. Naeem Khan, I:l\um, .pcwl WY o Secretary Foavironyem | durig
¥l corss nf ha cn-:u;iw PIOCCCUINgs s awghl as .“.‘.’z‘!ilﬁ'.!‘: stremeni recordaed on oot stood v his
wOris il it was accused (Mro Mubanumad - Sohail Khan. Depuny Necretry Indusivies
D-‘*p;it‘lm g who had personally delivered sthe f’z'.]\"e Approval/NOC for 780 BTS sies an el
< Sepiember, 2002 N -
Y \:‘:x
P <29, Director General, | avirommental Prowection Agency (ZPAY. My

Muhammad

y for sure { that the accused was the same impersonator (Mr,

8 Sohail) who met Him in connec tion with a. ;cqm\t for helping issue the 1o quired Approval/NQC
mrespect of the same Company.

N\ Bashir IChan, however, could not sa

1\ e

\\ e
T30 The other witnesses Mr. TSnaukal Al Yousufzai, Ex-Additiona Secretary ;
%b . , IR
py Environment, Two Deputy Secretaries MitiFR had Khan, Mr. \/lunammari Igbal Khattak and My
o

Mir Zali I\han SLLUOD Officer.including Mi:"Naeem Khan PS to Secretar y Environment stood by
% the statement and conﬁrmed that during. p[ClllﬂlllEﬂ\/huI finding enquiry the accused tur ned
= down the charge on 19" November, 2013 13 Lo have delivered the fake Approval/NOC to M.

Page 7 of 8
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SUIVIMARY FO.R CHIEF MINISTER

vf!'

i '—- ;’-’j; ‘ . 1’ " '
B 1/‘;: SUBJECT EXECUTION PETITION NOi'511/2022 IN REVIEW PETITION NO. 444/2019
R - MUHAMMAD SOHAIL, EX-DEPUTY SECRETARY (BS-18) VIS GOVT OF
o KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA THROUGH CHIEF SECRETARY.
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A summary on the subject is submitted for approval of the Chief
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GOVERNME®T }9‘
KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA

ESTABLISHMENT DEPARTMENT:

EXECUTION PETITION NO! 511/2022 IN REVIEW PETITION NO.
44412019 — MUHAMMAD SOHAIL, EX-DEPUTY SECRETARY (BS-
18) VIS GOVT. OF KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA THROUGH CHIEF

SECRETARY.

L g

- Para-39 of the summary is subm "teei—forappropﬁate orders of the
\O T “Thief Minister, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa; pIeaseK , e
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. -GOVERNMENT OF
KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA
ESTABLISHMENT DEPARTMENT
SUVIMARY FOR CHIEF MINISTER

SUBJECT: EXECUTION PETITION NO. 511/2022 IN REVIEW PETITION NO. 444/2019
T MUHAMMAD SOHAIL, EX-DEPUTY SECRETARY (B$-18) V/S GOVT. OF
KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA THROUGH CHIEF SECRETARY.

' : i , ; .
It sé‘lbmmed that Mr. Muhammad Sohail, Ex-Deputy Secretary, Industries
Department was & PMS BS-18 officer. He joired service on 22.1.2002. in 2014, an enquiry
was conducted against him on the following. charges {Annex-i):-

i) He issued the fake Environment Protection Agency approval to 780 BTS sites
for Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (Mobilink).

i) He, himself delivered the fake Environmental Protection Agency approval to
780-BTS siles for Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (Mobilink) to the
offices of Chief Secretary, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and Secretary Environment. -

iil) He had no official relation being a Depuly Secretary, Industries with the EPA
Environmental Approval but got himself involved in it.

2.0 Mr. ZaKjL};_i_Lnlﬁglgaj_Qh__f{__l,f{j_gi“,,'th'e' inen Member, BOR conducted enquiry and

submitted his report ShSiein the enquity officer has recommended that all the charges

leveled against;}gpe accused officer weyg.proved and recomrpended major penaity of
“removal from s&g”rvice” (Annex-Ii). - !

LN ?\;,f t“ f

R

(S

However, competent authq,r_j}'y did not agree with the findings/recommendation
of the enquiry officer and constituted am inguiry committee comprising of Mr. Kamran
Rehman Khan (PAS BS-19) and Mian-Muhammad (PCS SG BS-19) to conduct de-novo
enquiry against under £&D Rules, 2011,

N . BTN . G
Thecommittee conducted:therenquiry and submitted its report {Annex-Iil).

N P

i e

5. After completion of all codal formalities 2 enalty of "Removal from Service”
. < ‘ X penalty bt |
was imposed upon him on 19.5.2015, He filed a Review_Petition. in. Service Appeal No.

136/2015 before the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Service Tribunal and the honorable Tribunal

et

' Lo, L, , TR % :
assed the following jucgment (Annex-iV)y- .
N """";j b

rused thetrecord and have come to the conclusion that al!
codal formalities for disciplinary action against the appellant have been fulfilled by the
respondent-department. He has-been given full opportunity of defense and hearing
since charge No. 2 and No. 3 siand proved against the appellant therefore. he has
been punished. The major punishment awarded to the appellant is that of removal
from service however it was ohserved that the appeliant has rendered about thirteen
years of service. Present he was'in grade-18 which shows that he was promoted
from BS-17. Since Section-19 U6f the Civil Servant Act, 1873 provides for
compassionate allowance not exceeding wo-third of the pension or gratuity {0
dismissal/removed Government Servant on compassionate ground, therefore. the
'Tribunal;té_ inclined to form t1*c ‘:d“bin‘i‘gn that though O(-}ﬂ_éiilty of removal from seivice
ind that:of compulsory retirementiboth fall in the domairi 6f majar punishment yet the
. 63 ) .

“We have careiully pe
S
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findings as to. whether the charge ot c],alg,cs have been proved or not proved and specific
recommendations regarding exoneration of i imposition of minor or major penalty or penalties upon the
accused. Moreover, Rule 14 (4) of the rules ibid provides that where the charges have been proved,
the competent authority shall issue a show, cause notice to the accused.

I8. In view of above explained. position, Chiefé‘fﬁnister, eing competent authority under
Rule 4 (1) (a). of the Khyber Pakhtunkhg’v"é’,Civil Servants (Appointment, Promotion and Transfer)
Ruies, 1989 read with Rule 14 (4) of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Government servants (Efficiency and
Discipline) Rules, 201 1 may sign the show cause notice and insert the penalty from the list of penalties
(Annex-XTIIT) in S}Jabe left blank in l‘ne]show cause notice (Annex-X11).

' bt 1 {\\‘
' . ' I B ) /'\\ _y)
- G,
) S A : . ‘/,/
/ . N (Akhtar Saced Turk)
o Secretary Lsiabiishment
R T Tune, 2023
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- el J : : ©
¥ pursuance of Para-I'9"Ate, show canse notice, was issued to the accused

officer Mr.Muhammad Sohail (PMS BS‘-‘I’S), Ex-Deputy Secretary. Indusiries Department.

Khyvber Pakhiunihwa (Annex-NIVy.
21 I response the accused officer has stated that he has already suhmited a reply

to the Charge Sheet and the same may b2 considered as reply to the instant Show Cause
Notice. I1e has further stated that he has céinmited no misconduct which fact is evident from
the inquiry report, as no evidence whatsoever had been collected against him, therefore, the
Inquiry Commitee has recommended histreinstatement with all back benefits and minor
punishment of “censure”. The officer }1aé;fu11her requested that the ‘Show Cause Notice may i
be filed and he ma;v be exonerated from the charges leveled against him afier affording

opportunity of personal hearing (Annex-XV).

22. It1s pointed out that nothing new has been added in reply to the Show Cause
Notice and the samc is repetition of his earlier response/reply-to the Charge Sheet/statement
of allegations. The case in this regard- has: alreadv been examined al Paras 14-18 ante and

Show Cause Notice was issued after approval of the Competent Authority vide Para-19 of the

summary. v : SRCEREAN:

Vo,
ot

25 o wver. it s further -poinfed-onl that Rule-15 of the Kiwher Pakhinnkhvia
Government Sefvanis (Lificiency & Difs’cl?i_'plifhe‘) Rules, 2011 stipulates thai the Comperen
Authority. by an order in writing, call the accused and the departmental representatives. along
with relevant record of the case, 1o appear before him or before a hearing officer. on the fived
date and time (Annex-XTT ibid).

24, Forcgoing in view, the Hon’ble Chief Minister Khyber Pakhtunkhwa being

competent authority ander Rule-4(1)(a) of the Khyber Pakhwunkhwa Civil Servants

)

(Appointment, Promotion & Transfer), Riles, 1989 may afford opportunity of personal

hearing to the accused officer before confifmation of tentative penalty or appoint nearing

oiﬁccr in terms of Rule-135 of the Khyber. Rakhtunkhwa Government Servants (Efficiency &

Discipline) Rules; 201 1.

(Akhtar Saced Turk)
Secretary Establishment
Augustt7 2023
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Subject: - EXECUTION PETITION NO.511/2022 IN  REVIEW
PETITION _ NO: 444/2019-MUHAMMAD  SOHAIL, EX-
DEPUTY SECRETARY (BS- 18) VS GOVT. OF KHYBER
PAKHTUNKHWA THROUGH CHIEF SECRETARY, KHYBER

PAKHTUNKHWA,
27 Reference Pera 26/N of Surmmary for Chief Ministar, Khyber

Pakhtunkhwa, the undersigned,. was appointed as an ring Officer in

terms of Rule-15 of mﬂ' ' Khyber Pakhtunkhwm, Govi. Servanis

(Efficiency & Discipline) Rule, 2011:

Muhammad Sohail was summoned for

28. The accused [‘{Tr..‘,
personal hearing on 12.09. 2023 The Departmental Representative i.c.

Deputy Secretary (Judicial) Esgabl,lshment Department and Section O fficer

(E-T) Establishment Department wpre also sunmmoned. /
29. The Departmental Rlapresentatlves briefed regarding facts of

the case. The accused ofﬂcer was heard at length and record was

nerused. The accused officer haf ‘temained suspended from service since

19.05. 2017 based on the thre h‘arqef levelled against him in the Charge
Sheet and Statement of Alie audns He was removed from service by the
Competent Authority and subscquently his punishment was converted (o

compulsory retirement by the Service Tribunal,

30. . The accused omcor preferrad @ roview petition No. 444/2019
before thr* Service Tribunal, P\uynm unkhwa, The Tribunal Set asick

e oy e N -, — R I S .,' P ' FaH oo N ay gl [Nt
LS DrevicUs udgemaent and rel ISLal GOV UL GOCUSRA OINCey i SOrVICH T
: s ‘ - [N

purpose of de-novo inguiry. Establishment Department hias also fiord

CPLA in the Supreme Court of Daklstan against the judgment of senvice

- oy
DT

trinunal.

AT
it

Z+d INQUITY REPORT &



31 De-novo  inquiry conducted.  The Inquiry Officer has

recommendead his re-instatement into service with all hack benefits.

32. !f The L'ndersugned has gone through all the available record, heart
the accused officer in person and stance of the department, recommeneis
reinstat'ement of Mr.-Muhammad Sohall into service, with imposition of 1'mm
penalty of reduction to a lower post for a maximum of three (03) years under
Section 4 (1) _(b) (i) of Khyber pakhtunkhwa, Govt. Servants (Efficiency &

Dtsoplme) Rule, 2011, sub]ect to final outcome of CPLA filed by the

Fstablishment Department in the: Suprcme Court of Pakistan.

L
o Secretary
Industries Commerce & Technica!

. Education Department

| Jecretqg/
: | Eatabh/cmmen* Department
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33 In pursuance of para 46 ante, the Secretary Industries afforded opportunity of -
personal hearing to the accused namclv Mr. Muhammad Sohail on behalf of the competent
authority on 12.9.2023 and submitted his report vide Paras 27-32 of the Summary. The

Hlearing Officer recommended reinstatement of the ~accused into service with imposition of

(} rmnm pcnahv of“rcductlon to a loxxcr 1"0;»[ for a maximum period of three years™ subject to
outcorne of CPLA filed by thc Establist 1mem Department in the Sup]cmc C omt of Pakistan,

Since, as per Instructions of this Dcpartmcm darud OO 27 (Annex-XI) th Hearing

Officer can submit recommendation§;- 1erefore the case is. covercd under the Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa Government Servants (Fff'cxcncy & Discipline) Rules, 2011, However, the

recommendations of Hearing Officer shall not be binding on the Competent Authority.

34, Forgoing in view, recommendations of the Hearing Officer at Para-32 anie is
subimiticd for orders of the Hon’ble .Chief Minister being competent authority in terms of
Rule-4(1)(a) of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Scrvants (Appointment, Promotion and

Transfer) Rules, 1989,

T
\
<5' e
e

(Akhtar Saced Turk)
Secretary Establishment
i October ;2023

Minister for Pstabhsb/cnt&Admnmgnﬁﬂk s for £l dlishmen; &
Admin ar :deCDepwr!menf
hhyberPakhtquhwa
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- GOVERNMENT OF
KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA
ESTABLISHMENT DEPARTMENT
SUMMARY FOR CHIEF MINISTER

SUBJECT: EXECUTION PETITION NO. 511/2022 IN REVIEW PETITION NO.
444/2018 - MUH'AMMAD SOHAIL, EX-DEPUTY SECRETARY
(BS-18) VIS GOVT."'OF KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA THROUGH

2 CHIEF SECRETARY i

. '..5‘ “'1".

Para-35/S refers:

36. In pursuance of ap\brﬂd\'/al of the Chief Minister, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
accorded vide Para-35 of the summary, the following questions arises as to whether -
we may. - .
a. Re-instate the oﬁ‘icer into service w.e.f 19.05.2015 (i.e from the date of
imposition of major penalty of “Removal from service AND Impose
penalty of “Reduction to a iower post for a period of three years”
upon the officer w.e.f 19.05.2015, subject to final outcome of CPLA filed
by the Establishment Department in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
OR
b, Re-instate the officer mto service w.e.f 19.05.2015 AND Impose penalty
of “Reduction to a lower post for a period of three years” upon the
officer with immediate effect, subject to final outcame of CPLA filed by
the Establishment Department in the Supreme Couri of Pakistan
AND
c.  Whether the intervening period w.e.f 19.05.2015 iill mate will be treated
as ¢n duty OR as Extra ()rdmarv Leave without pay”

37. In order to dlscuss‘ang; resolve the above issues. a meeting was held
under the chairmanship of Special ‘Secret tary (Estt.) on 21,11.2023 at 1400 hours,
duly attended by Additional Secretarles (Establishment & Regulation), E&QAD and
representatives of Finance and Lawlepartment s (Record Note of the meeting is at
Annex-XN). During the discussid fepresema ive of Fmanoe Department added
that:- Job b "
“ The accused ofﬁcer M| ‘Muhammad Sohall may be re- mstated mto ;
.service w.e.f 19.05.2015 and impose the major penalty of “Reduction
“to a lower post for a period of three years” upon him with immediate °
effect, subject to final“outcome of CPLA filed by the Establishment -
Department in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
' AND
< The intervening penod w.ef 19.05.2015 till date may be treated as on
Extra Ordinary Leave (wnthout pay).

38. However, representatrve of Law Department endorsed the proposal of

the representative of Finance Department and further added that -
. The subject Execution Petition No. 511/2022 irn Raview Petition No.

444/2019 has already Been disposed of by the ! on’ble Tribunal via
Order Sheet dated 21‘ 122022 Hence, there is no legal bar to dlspose‘
of the instant case on v'ar fooung basis.

Il He further opined that In case we issue the above mentionad re-
instatement and impose: penalty upon the accused officer at this stage,
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NENNE NOTIFLCATION NOSO(E E&Al)/ﬁ-l

-

9712022

o your office fetter No. g()(l:)-l)f:l&Al)/S-l()7/2022 dated

I am directed 1o refler

0212:2027 ¢ the following has concluded the

and 1o siate that ihe i inquiry commitice wmpmmn 0

subject de-nove inquiry. whercin Departmental Representalive/Fogal Person Mr. Adnan Jamil. Deputy

Secrctary-11 also participated in the ingquiry proceedings and provided all relevant documents and
evidences requived forthe | mqun\
b, My, Zaka Ullah Khattak (PC§ I (G BS-20), Chairman Ingquiry Committee

2. Mr. Waheed Khan Deputy Director EPA Cenral Directorate. Technical Member of

the Inquiry Committee.

| am therefore directed Lo state that the mqulrv :eport comprising of 05 paces gach page signed by the

[T

Chairman and Technical Member of the inquiry, committee and gach annexure has been given reference

in the inquiry report is submitted for perusal and appropriate order of the Competent Authonly.

_ , Assistant Dircctor 1IR
- : Khvbel Pakhtunkhwa Urban Mobility '\uthont\'

v Y
B

Copy forwarded for 4nformation to: :
[ PS to Chief Sccretary, Khyber Pakhtunkh\\ aw.r.L10 above quoted letter
2. PS 1o Seeretary Climate Change. © ()Iu&i{)’, Environment and Wildlife Department

3. PS 1o Managing Director, KPUMA *~ ©.
AL . o Assistant Director HR

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Urban Mobility Authority
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i’ho Secrekary Govt of Khyber PakhLunkhWﬂ ETS NG Lt
SIS &=

Eordhlisbinent Department.,

NOTIFICATION NO.SO(E-,I)Ms-wHZOZZ_

\:\

Subject:

Near Si e

1 am directed to refer to your office letter No.SO(E-I)E&AD/5- 197/2022
Wi 05-04-2023 and to state that the inquiry committee comprising Mr. Zaka Ullah
khattak (PCS EG BS-20), Chairman Inquiry Committee and Mr. Waheed Khan Deputy
Director EPA Central Rirectorate, Techmcai Member of the mquwy comm1ttee added

's'r\

recommendation also. ‘
[ am merefore directed to enclose herewith the mqmry report for further

appropriate action, please.

Taquiry report consists of 05 pages, each signed.

. \/l./(w\ii‘
7

-Section Officer (Establishment)
gy
Enclose as above. .
Copy forward to the: Cl

1. PS to Secretary, ST&IT Department
2 PA to Additional Secretary, STRIT Department, Govt. of KP

3 PA to Deputy Secretary (Admin), STRIT Department, Govt. of KP

3.

Section Officer (Establishment)

o
i
|
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Introduction:

SR FRTAR tetabhishorent anil Administration Y,)(@p;,,»“,,cm viilo NO-SO(5~|)E&/\D/,B-fl.‘_-)')/‘),()'z_)
darad v Doecember, 2027 (F/A) was recetved, whopein honarable Chiet Seoratacy of Khyie

Satrakbu o weas pleased to approve a de-nova Wiy apraimnst PMS officer Me, Mubamomang

N AT BN ERY Exsdeputy Secretary Industries Department. Statearment of alleyaiarn and
sooshech were also enclosed. The undersignod yy nominated as chaimman of themauy
I; EEREIATIE SRS Covirenment Departmdnt Wl bhrowoevor requuested HATS
| N }\JUM&\/DH’ HAE/HR/2022/1280:82 o od 1474 2022 (FIB) and subnegquently o remander
’ e NOLKPUMA/Dir. HAF/HR/ZO?Z/J. 340-42 dateg 16/01/2043 (F/C). tor nomination of iheir

dopartmental representative and Technical member for assisting the incoiry commitiee m the

»uid.‘n’t(‘(‘ on  technical matters,

y craduction of record/ witnesses as well as (o pmvuh‘_
H Subsequently, Dnvironment Department vide. SO(G)/cCFE&WD/: 8/NOMINATION/2022/1865:

B6 dated 21/12/2022(F/D) nominated Mr., Adnan Jamil (PMS-BSI8) Depuly Secretary as
and vide Iotto No. EPA/Admanommatlon/lnqmry/??,ll 237

: epartmental Ropxo\ontntlw_
daied 27/01/2023, Fnvironmental Protection Agency nominated Mr.

i-ector as Technical Member (FZE). Witnesses and accused officer were called and examined in
ad officer to cross examine

Wahced Khan Deputy

()

sence of accused officer and full opportunity was pJ(JVi(‘]L.d to accuse
; ‘h'a witnesses, list of which is (F/F), as well as witnessces were also given full opportunity to cross
examine accused officer. One main witness I\/h Shuakat Al Yusafzai who was chairman of the

fact finding inquiry was called for :ecordnw his statement and for provision of othar relevant

’_3

evidence, however he preferred to abstain.

2. :Background:

arief background of the instant caseris that reportedly Mr: Muhammad Sohail o PMS
officer in BPS-18 Ex-Deputy Secretary Industries department brought NOC for 780 BTS Towers
for Mobilink personally to Secretary Environment office, wherein Chief Secretary office stamp
was affixed along with Chief Secret tary's~femarks”’ For Immediate n/a_Secretary (inv) fr”.
However, reportedly after-delivering the letter the accused officer came back after some time
and took the letter from PS to Secretary Environment, Mr. Nagem khan. However, Mr. Naeem
Khan PS to Secretary Environment himself took photocopies of the letter and brought into the
notice of Secretary Environment, who orderea a fact finding-inquiry by nominating Mr. Shaukat
Ali Yusafzai as Chairman(F/G). The fmdmgs of the fact finding inquiry went against the accused
- ofticer (Mr. Muhammad Sohail) Deputy Secretary industries, which was of the view that “the said
officer (Mr. Muhammad Sohail, Deputy Secretary, Industries) has committed this criminal

fraudulent conduct, which must be probed further”.

| N
N




ad Sohail wars@onducted 9.3

7/ ‘Consequently, s formal inGoiry against the aecused oHiear MP. pubanmm
d opportunities of

By M. Zakir Hossain Adridi (f/li) and recofamended that “inspite of repeate
Cik‘ff,‘ﬂSC Being given to Mr. Sohail, D(—?pmyig“ec—rctnrv (nPs-18) (PM_S), he could not absclve
himsetf from the charges levelted against him: Thig ymounts 10 criminal fraudulent conduct
‘Rules 2 read -Hule 3 of the Government of Khyber
He has rendered himself fizble to be
‘ recommend major

amounting to misconduct as per
pakhtunkhwa, Etficiency and Disciplinary Rules 2011,
punished in fight of Rules ibid with one or more penalties. Therefore, |1,
penalty of R(‘_mouni_frrmLService",

A e oneve saquiry (B was ordered by honorable Chief Mister Khyber Pakhtunihwa which wias

! cemdacied by Mi. Kamran Rehman Khan, Additional Secretary (PFC) and Mr. Mian Muhammad,
Adaonal Secretary (Estbb.). The inquiry committee concluded-that the first formal charge of.
issuance of Fake NOC by the accused officer” was not proved while the Second formal charge
+ “delivering the Fake NOC” against the accused stood proved. Furthermore, the 3" formal
charge “You_had no official relation being a Deputy Secretary Industries with the EPA
Environmental approval but got yourself involved in it” was partially proved against the accused »
officer. The accused officer preferred to move Services Tribunal against the order (F/J). The D

ervices Tribunal converted his Appellant punishiment of Removal from service in to Compulsory

Retirement.

.: Therefore, the accused filed a review petltion'lbefore the Services Tribunal wherein the impugned
.5 order of the petitioner from compulsory retirement was set aside and was reinstated into the
service for the purpose of de-novo inguiry (Em. Thus, the instant inquiry was ordered and the
accused officer was.charge sheeted with the following charges: ' ’

N 1. That you issued the fake Environment. Protection Agency approval to 780 BTS sites for
Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (Mobilink}.
1. That you, yourself delivered the falke Environment Protection Agency approval to 780 BTS

|

‘ sites for Pakistan Mobile Communicatien Limited (Mobilink) to'the offices of Chief

L Secretary, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and:Secretary Environment.

i . N

q.: . That You had no official relation being.a Deputy Secretary, industries with the EPA

v,i , Environmental Approval but got yoursglf involved in it.

:j . 3. Methodology:

J The undersigned along with inquiry committee recorded the statements of the following -
Officers/Officials as below:

' EANE T I
Mr. Muhammad Bashir, Ex-DG Environmental-Protection Agency (F/L), Mr. Mir Zali Khan (PMS
BS-19), Director KPRA Peshawar (F/M), Dr. Amjad Ali Khan, Ex-Deputy Director, Environmental
Protection Agency (ﬂm Mr. Muhammadilgbal Khattak, Ex-Deputy Secretary-il Environment
Department (F/O), Mr. Muhammad Sohaili (Accused Officer), Ex-Deputy Secretary Industries
Department (F/P), Mr. Naeem Khan, Ex-PS+to Secretary Environment Department (F/Q), Mr.
7afruliah, Ex-Junior Clerk Environment Dé'p';i}frﬁ‘ént (F/R] a
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Charge Nob That vou isstued the fake Environmeniy) protestion Agency ipproval to 780 815

Gles far Pakistan l’s«i‘,nh?h.‘:"fr‘h;cnmmt‘ni’xls‘_;‘|1.|'('n“r,t:.a Unitay (Mabiink)
: ) iR

s inre Moo eane coned, from thee statemeng of witiiesse® and othed cuidanens wah o
cosonpuey reper i and cross examination of the eoeed officee thecmstant churee conld
co e rnaved Lo the reason that no trace cowld be found oot |n.~?3<lin;:f, Lo the aceuged offieers Log
cnocevoed e NOC Stadement of Safrollablbs Joniar Clerk, v also imiporiant, whe bas siaied
pont e drin t hnow how did the letier reached the olice of Chief Scarelary and howe wos the
S csaed However, he accepted that the responsibility of having diaricd the wame aned e
thy sanwe statemant in front of fact finding inquiry headed by Mr. Shaukal Ali Yusafzai the then
sadinonal Secretary of Environment Department. Furthermore, he stated that in roulng¢
shatters the letter with remarks was sent to concerned Secretary through peon book. The instant
lotior was neither-diaried in the peon book nor sent 1o Environment Depejrtment through peon
ook 1018 also not known if the accused officer signed the NOC or it was signed through scmeone
cise However, if the signatures on fake NOC{?;Jr__g‘sem for forensic report, it will be cleared if these

wore his or othornwice. it

Charge No.2: .

That Mr. Muhammad Sohail issued the fake Environmental Protection Agency approval to 780

8BTS sites for Pakistan

As far as charge No. 2 is concerned, statement of Mr. Naeem Khan, PS to Secretary Environment
Department, Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa is very important, who stated that he knew
My Muhammad Sohail accused officer sin‘-ce the time he was secretary RTA, as RTA before the
creation of Transpart department was a part of Environment Department, and theréfore he had
frequent official interaction with him. This fact was not denied by Mr. Muhammad Sohail
{Accused Officer} He further stated that he Hﬁéd;n'o doubt that the person who brought the letter
of NOCs for 780 BTs tower was the present a;gtjsed officer Mr.-Muhammad Sohail. Mr. Naeem
Khan slso in his statement stated that hel:vgatls doubtful of the signatLlre of DG Environmental
Protection Agency, therefore, he showed signatures on NOCs to Dr. Muhammad Bashir Ex-DG
Environmental Protection Agency, who denied the signatures as his and requested for sending
the same to his office officially. Therefore, after approval of Secretary Environment, the same
fake NOCs letter was sent to' DG EPA officially for his views (E/S). In response Dr. Bashir DG
Fnvironmental Protection Agency letter vide:No. EPA/NOC/BTS/295 dated 07/10/2013 (F/T}
responded that neither this NOC was issued by his office nor these were his signatures.

The statement of Dr. Bashir (F/L) is also pigri_inegt in which he stated that he was visited by an
officer introducing himself as DMG officer, posted as Additional Secretary in industries
department and requested for issuing NOfC:g{-fd‘r 780 BTS tower of Mobilink.: Dr. Bashir further
stated that actually senate standing commi‘gfee in 2008 (F/U) and Federal Government (EPA

YT 1 A s st - o
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Mr. Muhammad Sohail

e further stated

o erenteb g NGOG t Lhat wathout

Chon o RIS hewall not bein o
POSILION o | [
sue NOC

RIEE AN RETRIVERS lll\(\;1 i ""f‘l\”l man wl
10 Visitods hi (so d
S »and a
Office 4 \!idlh(m,H

t.
satres department i there was someone, by lhe name of M- muh
¢ that one

asakt pms officer. |
d officer was the one who

visted his office. He informed that he gave the statement in the de-novo inquiry conducted by
eme ed that Mr. Naeem Khan

[ My Kamran Rehman and Mr. Mian F\/luhammad (F/1). He however informe
| £S to Secretary Environment Department knew him as he had freaver
Secretary RTA. —

SR R

Secretany dndusties Department. However, my pS informed m
!

s m)\iod as Deputy Secretary Industries Department, who W

that he could not confirm with 100% surety:that the present accuse

tinteractions with him as

tary Environment Department (F/O},

| From the statement of Mr. lgbal Khattak, Ex-Deputy Secre
|nqu||’\/ COmmlttee

it is clear that Mr. Sohail was the person who admitted in front ofthe de-novo
headed by Mr. Kamran Rehman and Mr. Mian Muhammad, that he “delivered the Fake NOC fetter
' to the Secretary Environment’s office and handed it over t0 the PS to Secretary Environment Mr.
: Naegem Khan. Mr. Mir Zali Khan Ex- Section Officer rnwronment Department also in his statement
stated that Mr. Muhammad Sohail (Accused Officer) admitted that in the de-novo inguiry that

; he delivered the letter to PS to Secretary Fnvironment, Mr. Nagem Khan.

d against him. He stated
ency Office, and in his
s for Pakistan Mobile

i Sohail in his statement, however has denied all the charges levelle
in his statement that he never visited Envvronmental Protection Ag
statement, further stated that he has never dellvered NOC for BTS site
Communication Limited {Mobilink) in the ofhce of Chief Secretary or Secretary Environment

Department.

Charge No. 3: o e

T
A FR T

You had no official relation being a Deputy Secretary industrles with the EPA Environmental Approval
I

but got yourself involved in it.
s l‘» Wi

As far as charge No. 3 is concerned, the accuséd officer stated that being Deputy Secretar
Industries Department, he had no link with Enwronmental Protection Agency, and that he wa\i
ignorant about activity, that he never dehvered approval for 780 BTS s;tes to Secretar
Environment Departmenb However, Mr. Naeem Khan PS to Secretary Environment, stated th \:;
the accused officer himself brought the NOC whlch makes the intentions of the accused offi ;
suspicious. Though, apparently, the accused officer being posted at Industries departmegt ilwcaec:

nothing to do with Environment Department, however, if it is presumed that he was the o h
ne who.

- went to DG Environmental Protection Agency office with a request for i Issumg NOC for 780 BTS
or
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towers, then he 'h_g'd some interest attached to the NOC. However, it is clear that no monetary
benefit could be secured from the fake NOC for 780 BTS towers as the fake NOC was
withdrawn/disowned and was of no use to any one including the accused officer and the Mobile
Company (Mobilink), as informed by DG Environmental Protection Agency. Furthermore, DG
Environmental Protection Agency disowned the fake NOC letter vide No. EPA/NOC/BTS/295

dated 7/10/2013 (F/T)} conveyed to Section Officer, Environment Department, Government of
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. '

4. Conclusion

The inquiry committee after perusing statements of accused officer, witnesses, previous inquiry
reports and other related evidences, is of the view that Mr. Muhammad Sohail {Accused Officer)
is guilty of committing a misconduct by bringing NOC for 780 BTS towers to the office of Secretary
_Environment, having fake signature of DG Environmental Protection Agency however intention
of bringing NOC for 780 BTS towers to the office of Secretary Environment is not known.However
it can be presumed that it was an atten‘ipt to favor Mobile Comp»any (Mob'iiink) which was
desperately in need of NOC for 780 BTS towers established before 2009, which DG Environmental
Protection Agency had declined. : ,‘ !

The inquiry committee is further of the v,ié'w,,fhat since the fake NOC was withdrawn/disowned
by DG Environmental Protection Agency aftér.coming to know about it, therefore, the intention
of the accused officer to favor Mobile Compames also stood frustrated and therefore, the NOC

was of no use o any party whether the accused officer and Mobilink Company. -

The inquiry committee agrees with the c_qp'g,l:usion of de-novo inquiry headed by Mr. Kamran
Rehman Khan (PAS BS-19), Additional Secretary (PFC), Finance Department and Mr. Mian
Muhammad (PCS-SG-BS-19), Additional Secretary (Estt.), Establishment Department, wherein
charge No.2 was stated to be proven against the accused officer, whereas charge No. 1 was stated
to be not proven and charge No.3 was stated,to be partially proven.

The inquiry committee fherefore concludes by absolving the accused officer from charge No 1
however holds him guilty for charge No.2, and partially holds him guilty for charge No.3.

This de-novo inquiry report consist of 05 pages. Each page sigried

! PO AR AN

Zaka Ullah Khattake LU3 Waheed Khan
Chairman Gt Technical Member
Inquiry Committee o+ Inquiry Committee




Introduction:

MWE-] I&A])/ﬂ-
bic Chiel Sceretary

TTY against pMS officer Mr.
It

Dcpm!mml Statement ol
ated as chairman

requested vide

\.’i(’i(‘)
pp honora

Loger Oom List \b!lshmcm and '\dmmmlta tion
1932022 dated 2™ Dc;unbm 2 (FIA) was re
of Khvber Pakhiunkinag was plmxcd 0 apPrave o de_ v NG
Muhaimanad Sohail (PMS- BSI8). Ex- (Iepul\ Scmclaumlnrlusll"‘“
, '.\glmm and charae sheei were also encloséd, The undmh’g”‘“d was ot
ob the inquiry committee.  Environment b o was however ¢
NOKPUMA/D i HAF/HRA {)72/12?(!~821clal[cillm::nlc“n'{““ (ER) an(.l gj]lﬁel?ll;zr;[])'f"'i’
reminder vide NG.KPUMA/Dir.H, \UHR/zmznuff«%’ dated Wmur;-) @ﬁn:x the
aomination ol their departmental represe mauv~ and Jochnical ! e e

THITY commiiiee in the production of ‘etards Wwitnesses 49 well 2

technical matiers. Subsequently.  Environmen - Depariment """CMC,”SF\(;R;:_
BINOMINATION/2022/1865-66daied 21/12/2022(F/) norminated M- Adnan Zamt T2
BSI8) Deputy  Secretary as qudllmcnl’il Rc.pm%u“d“‘e and \'.:]de lt“_el ..O'
P»'x/’\dmn/Nmmm\lmn/[mnurv/ﬂ-i 237 “dated  27/01/202 53 Environmental  Protection

. -2l Member(F/E).
Agency nominated Mr. Waheed Khan Depuly Dncum as Technical 1 i

eerand
Winesses and-accused efficer were called and examined in presence of accused officer:
camine the witnesses. list of which

Depaptment
(_Cl\ 5 ] \HCF

nembe!
s 10 ])IO\i[lC ouiclance on

ull opportuniin was provided 10 accused officer (o cross e
15 (F/F). as well as withesses were also eiven full oppm‘tuml\ (0 cross examine accused
officer. One main vitness Mr. Shuakar Al Yusafzai who was chairman of the fact finding
munywas called for recording his siatement and for provision ol other relevant evidence.
however he nreferred 10 abstain.

2 Background: -

Brict backgrotind of the instant case is that reportedly Mr. Muhammad Sohail a-PMS
officer in BPS-18 1x-Deputy Secrelary Industries depanment brought NOC for 780 BTS
Tawers for Mobdink personally to Secretary Environment office. wherein Chiel’ Secretary
ofiice stamp was aflixed along with G higl: Seerctary’s renwarks™ For' Immediate n/a

Secretary (Inv)fr™. However. ]LD(N[LLIE\.J‘JLI LIL'I\‘(‘]!I]“ the Jetter theaccused officer came

back aher svme time and waok the feuer, fm]? RS o Seeretary Environment. My, Niagem Khan.
Fowever, M. Nacem Khian PS 16 Scerelars "

l; n\-rmmncnl himscelt ook photocopies ol the
retary Envivonment. who ordered a taet {inding
HUITY DY ;-,U;n;m[;,-nr‘;\fir Shaukat Al Yusalzar as Chanrman(F/G), The findines of the tact

leiter and brought into the notice of Sge

nading myuiny went against the accused nfhuu (Mr. Muhammad Sohail) Deputy Secrelary

industrics. which was of the view (hat thc_mld officer (Mr, Muhammad Sohail, Deputy

Seeretary, tndustries) has commifted this criminal fraudulent conduct, which must be
probed further” e

I

Cunsequently. a formal mquiry against theaccused officer Mro Muhammad Sohail was
wondneiced by e Zakir Hussain Afvidi (F/H) and recommended that “in- -spite of repeated

lr“SOhall Deputy Secretary (BPS-18) (PMS),
he coutd not absolve ’bunsdf from the Lhdl"0§ fevelied against him, This amounts to

e?p;mrtur‘m“'\' ol defeiSe being given to'-,.
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criminal fraudulent conduct amounting to misconduct as per Rules 2 read Rule 3 of the
Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Efficiency and Disciplinary Rules 2011. He has
rendered himself liable to be punished :in light of Rules ibid with onc or morc
penaltics. Therefore, I, recommend major p”enalty of Removal from Service”.

A de-novo inquiry (F/I) was ordered by honorable Chief Mister Khyber Pakhtunkhwa which
was conducted by Mr. Kamran Rehman Khan Additional Secretary (PFC) and Mr. Mian
Muhammad, Additional Secgetary (Estbb.)., "The inquiry commitiee-concluded: that the first
formal charge of “issuance of Fake NOC by the accused officer”was not proved while the
Second formal charge of “delivering the'Fake NOC™ against the accused stood proved.

Furthermore, the 3™ formal charge “You had no official relation being a Deputy Seerctary
Industries with the EPA Environmental approval but got yourself involved in it” was
partially proved against the accused officer, The accused officer preferred to move Services’
Tribunal against the order (F/J). The Services Tribunal convertedhis Appellant punishment of
Removal from servnce in to Compulsory Retirement.

Therefore, the accused filed a review petition before the Services Tribunal wherein the
impugned ‘order of the petitioner from compulsory retirement was set aside and was
reinstated into the service for the purpose of de-hovo inquiry. (F/K). Thus, the instant inquiry
was ordered and the accused officerwas chargle sheeted with the following charges: '

I.  That you issued the faké Environment Protection Agency approval to 780 BTS sites
for Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (Mobilink). '

[I.  That you--yourself delivered the fake Environment Protection Agency approval to 780
BTS sites for Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (Mobilink) to the ofﬁces of
Chief Secretary, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and Secretary Environment.

1. That You had no official relatlon bemg a Deputy Secretary, Industries with the EPA
Environmental Approval but got ,yqu‘rs”elf involved in it.

Methodology: 3"37!"‘?53

(OS]

The undersigned along with® mqmrv committee recorded ‘the statements of the

following Ofﬁcers/Ofﬁmals as below: "L Ny
e
Mr. \/luhammad Bashir, Ex-DG Env;ronmental Protection Agency ( /L) Mr. Mir Zali Khan

(PMS BS-19), Director KPRA Peshawar (__) Dr. Amjad Ali Khan, Ex-Deputy Director,
Environmental Protection Agency (____)g .Mr. Muhammad Igbal Khattak, Ex-Deputy
Secretary-I1I Environment Department (ﬂQ)MMr Muhammad Sohail (Accused Officer), Ex-
Deputy Secretary Industries Deg;artment (E/P), Mr. Naeem Khan, Ex-PS (o Secretary
Environment Department (F/Q), Mr. Zafrullah Ex-Junior Clerk "Environmeént Department
(F/R

4\‘1\1""
4. Findings |, . pEth

Charge No.1:That you issued the fake Envnronmental Protection Agency approval to
780 BTS sites fox Pakistan Mobile Te]ecommumcatlons Limited (Mobilink)

‘l(v'
As far as charge No.l.is concerned, from the statement of witnesses and other evidences such

LR R AT

as previous inquiry reports and cross- exammanon of the accused officer, the instant charge

couldnot be proved for the reason that o tr@ could be found out-leading to the accused
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“officer for having issued the NOC. Statement of Zafrullah Ex-Junior Clerk, is also important,

“who has stated that he didn’t know how did the letter reached the office of Chief Secretary
“and how was the letter issued. However, he accepted that the responsibility of having diaried
the same and- gave the same statement in front of fact finding inquiry headed by Mr. Shaukat
All Yusafzai the then Additional Secretary .of Environment Department. Furthermore, he
stated that in routine matters, the letter with remarks was sent-to concerned Secretary through

peon book. The instant letter was neither

diaried in the peon book nor sent to Environment

Department through peon book. It is also not known if the accused officer signed the NOC or
it was signed through someone else, However, if the signatures on faké NOC are sent for
forensic report, it will be cleared if these were his or otherwise, :

Charge No.2:

That Mr. Muhammad Sohail issued
approval to 780 BTS sites for Pakistan

the fake Environmental Protection Agency

As far as charge No. 2 is concerned, statement of Mr., Naeem Khan, PS to Secretary

Environment Department, Government of

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa is very important, who stated

that he knew Mr. Muhammiad Sohail accused officer since the time he was secretary RTA, as
RTA before the creation of Transport departaient was a part of Environment Department, and
therefore he had frequent official interaction with him. This fact was not denied by Mr.

Muhammad Sohail (Accused Officer). He

further stated that he had no doubt that the person

who brought the letter of NOCs for 780 B'{s tower was ‘the present accused officer Mr.
Muhammad Sohail. Mr. Naeem Khan also in his statement stated that he was doubtful of the
signature of DG Environmental Protection Agency, therefore, he showed signatures onNOCs

toDr. Muhammad Bashir Ex-DG Envi

ronmental Protection Agency, who -denied the

signatures as his afd requested for sending;the same to his office officially. Therefore, after
approval of Secretary Environment, the same fake NOCs letter was sent to DG EPA officially

for his views (F/S). In response Dr. Bashi

r DG Environmental Protection Agency letter vide

No. EPA/NOC/BTS/295dated 07/ 10/2013:(F/T!;responded that neither this NOC was issued

by his office nor these were his signatures.

The statement of Dr. Bashir (F/L) is also

e

pértinent in which he stated that he was visited by

an officer introducing himself as DMG ofﬁ‘c;é‘r::bosted as Additional Secretary in industries
department and requested for issuing NOC f017§0 BTS tower of Mobilink. Dr. Bashir further
stated that actually senate standing committe i 2008 (E[U) and Federal Government (EPA
Guidelines) 2009 (F/V) wanted to regulate establishment of-BTS tower, therefore he was
frequently visited by his acquaintances for NOC, especially when the Provincial Government
started regulating establishment of BTS towers, however the issue arose when the Mobilink
requested for clearing backlog of BTS towers establishedbefore 2009,when there were no

requirement of securing NOC for establis]
mspection of BTS, he will not beinap

1ment,of BTS towers. He made a point that without
ositien to issue NOC for BTS towers. He further

stated that he politely refused the gentlemane‘yyhg'visited his office and also directed his PS to
check with industries department if there=wastsomeone by the name of Mr. Muhammad

Sohail as Additional Secretary Industries Department. However, my PS informed me that one
Mr. Muhammad Sohail was posted as De;ﬁuiy;:&ecretary Industries Department, who was a

PMS officer. He further stated that he co

uld; ot confirm with 100% sur'ety that the present

" accused officer was the one who visited his off‘fc,e. He informed that he gave the statement in

.....




the de-novo inquiry conducted by Mr. Kamran Rehman and Mr. Mian Muhammad (E/M). He
as he had frequent interactions with him as Secretary RTA.

From the statement of Mr. Igbal Khattak, Ex-Deputy Secretary Environment Department

(F/O),it is clear that Mr-Sohail was the person who admitted in front of the de-novo inquiry

committee headed by Mr. Kamran Rehman and Mr. Mian Muhammad, that he delivered the
Fake NOC letter to the Secretary Environmient’s office and handed it over to the PS to
Secretary Environment Mr. Naeem Khan:Mr. Mir Zali- Khan Ex- Section Officer

however informed that Mr. Naeem Khan PS to Secretary Environment Department knew him -

Environment Department also in his statement stated that Mr. Muhammad Sohail (Accused

Officer) admitted that in the de-novo inquiry that he delivered the letter to PS to Secretary
Environment, Mr. Nacem Khan. -

Mr. Sohail in his-staterfient, however has denied all the charges levelled against him. He

stated in his statement that he never visited‘-‘,,llf:rilviromnental Protection Agency Office, and in
his statement, further stated that he has‘n¢Ver delivered NOC for BTS sites for Pakistan
Mobile Communication Limited (Mobilink) in the office of Chief Secretary or Secretary

Environment Department,

Charge No. 3:

You had no ofﬁciaﬁ__relation being a Deputy Secretary Industries with the EPA Environmental
Approval but got yourself involved in it. .- t

RESHR hi"“

Tt

As far as charge No. 3 is concerned, the ai,c,{:iiscd officer stated thatbeing Deputy Secretary
Industries Department, he had no link with‘E’nvironmenta] Protection Agency, and that he
was ignorant about activity, that he never delivered approval for 780 BTS sites to Secretary
Environment Department, However, Mr, Naeem Khan PS to Secretary Environment, stated
that the accused officer himself brought the NOC which makes the intentions of the accused
officer suspicious, _ Though, apparently, the accused officer being posted at Industries
department had nothing to do with Environmeht Department, however, if it is presumed that
he was the one who went to DG Environrhental Protection Agency office with a request for
issuing NOC for 780 BTS towers, then he Hadisome interest attached to:the NOC. However,
it is clear that no monetary benefit could beisecured from the fake NOC for 780 BTS towers
as the fake NOC was withdrawn/disowned&nd was of no use to any one including the accused
officer and the Mobile Company (Mobilink)ias informed by DG Environmental Protection
Agency. Furthermore, DG Environmental-P‘I‘d};b'ction,Agency disowned. the fake-NOC letter

vide No. EPA/NOC/BTS/295dated 7/10/2013 (F/T) conveyed to Section Officer,
Environment Department, Governmeng of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

5. Conclusion ,

The Inquiry Committee after perusing stat"é‘fnénts of accused officer, witnesses, previous
inquiry reports and other related evidences, is of the view that Mr. Muhammad Sohail
(Accused Officer) is guilty of conm*nittingii,.{g!;,;rgisconduct by bringing NOC for 780 BTS
towers to the office!of S’écretal‘y‘ Environ_n'léni,rhaving fake signature of DG Environmental
Protection Agency however intention of bringing NOC for 780 BTS towers to the office of
Secretary Environment is not known, Howeyqffiﬁﬂcan be presumed that it was an attempt to
favor Mobile Company {(Mobilink) which was desperately ifi need of NOC for 780 BTS
towers established before 2009, which DG Eﬁ’v;igbnnlental Protection Agency had declined.
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The inquiry committee is ‘further of .the view that since the fake NOC was
withdrawn/disawned by DG Environmental.Protection Agency after coming to know about it.
therefore. the intention of the accused, officer to favor Mobile Companies alsostood frustrated
and therefore, the NOC was of no use to g{ny party whether the accused officer and Mobilink
Company. L

The inquiry committee agrees with the qohblusion of de-novo inquiry headed by Mr. Kamran
Rehman Khan (PAS BS-19), Additional Secretary (PFC), Finance Department and Mr. Mian
Muhammad (PCS-SG-BS-19), Additional Secretary (Estt.), Establishment Department,
wherein charge No.2-was stated to be p"r;.o\/_cﬁ. against the accused officer, whereas_charge No.
| was stated to be nof proven and charge No.3 was stated to be partially proven.

The inquiry committee therefore concludes by absolving the accused officer from charge
No.1 however holds him guilty for charge No.2, and partially holds him guilty for charge
No.3. -

L
6. Recommendations:

The chairman Thquiry committee in light of the findings has come to know that the accused
officer was suspended from service dated 19/05/2015 (7 years & 11 months) for personally

_delivering NOC from Chief Secretary office to Secretary Environment office. Since then he

has faced 3 inquiries and spent around 7 years of energies and resources in various court of
laws to clear his guilt and get him reinstated to service. Therefore, -the Chairman Inquiry
Committee taking his around 8 years of s;ispension as enough punishment and recommend
him for reihstatement into service with all back benefits and minor punishment of censure.

7. Dissenting Note of Member Technical«l'ﬁquirv Committee:

| I P TN .

Member Technical of the inquir')'/;“fé‘,cl)}ﬁ’nﬁw_ittce Mr. Waheed' Khan, Deputy Director
Environment Protection Agency is Howg\zer of the view that since the accused officer has
been proved guilty for charge No.02"'and’partially guilty for charge No.03. Therefore, he
recommends that the accused officer may be one scale demoted at least as the charges have
been proved on him. '

L)L

This de-novo inquir)}’;eport consists ofO_%‘pgges. Each page is signed by the committee.

Ay g alw v
Zaka Ullah Khattak B Waheed Khan
Chairman e Technical Member
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